
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, September 25, 2012                                                                    City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 (Pack 506 Cub Scouts - Webelo Den, Spartans Patrol) 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Safe Schools Week Proclamation – Week of October 21-27, 2012 (Kent School District) 
• Fire Prevention Week Proclamation– Week of October 7-13, 2012 (Captain Larry Rabel) 
• Make a Difference Day Proclamation – October 27, 2012 (Glenn Akramoff) 
• National Community Planning Month Proclamation – October 2012 (Daniel Key) 
• Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation – October 2012 (Victoria Throm) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  September 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Vice Chair Fran McGregor-Hollums:  Aug. 9 and Sept. 13 meetings. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  Aug. 9 and Sept. 13 meetings. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison Darren Dofelmier: Aug. 1, Aug. 15, & Sept. 

19 meetings. (Sept. 5 meeting canceled.) 
 
Future Meetings: 

• Parks & Recreation:  Aug. 15 & Sept. 19 regular meetings canceled; next meeting Oct. 17. 
• Planning Commission:  Aug 2, Aug. 16, Sept. 6, Sept. 20 regular meetings canceled; next 

meeting Oct. 4. 
• Economic Development Council:  July & Aug. meetings canceled; next meeting Sept. 27.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Debrief Northern Notch Advocacy Effort (Matheson) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  September 25, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SEPTEMBER 11, 2012 CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES   
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the September 11, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 30



Unapproved Draft – September 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 25, 2012 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 11, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 11, 2012, at 7:04 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish (arrived @ 7:37 p.m.), Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, 
Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Lucavish who was ill.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance followed by a moment of silence 
in recognition of Patriot Day and National Day of Service and Remembrance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Lila Henderson, Director of Maple Valley Food Bank, accepted the Mayor’s Day of 
Concern for the Hungry Proclamation. 

• Jackie Berganio, Program Manager and Community Coordinator at King County Mental 
Health, Chemical Abuse and Dependency Services Division, accepted the National 
Recovery Month Proclamation. 

• Former Covington Lobbyist Dick Little was recognized by the Council. 
 
The Council recessed at 7:23 p.m. for a short reception for Mr. Little and reconvened at 7:35 
p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Nancy Behm, 26603 161st Avenue SE, Covington, expressed displeasure with  workers in High 
Pointe having materials dropped off as early as 6:15 a.m. and starting work as early as 7:00 a.m. 

2 of 30



Unapproved Draft – September 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 25, 2012 
 

 2 

on weekdays and as early as 8:00 a.m. on weekends.  Ms. Behm requested Council to revise the 
construction work hours from 7:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m, minimizing the 
hours from a 13-hour workday to an 11-hour workday, and banning construction completely on a 
Sunday. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes of August 14, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting. 

 
C-2. Vouchers #28064-28154, in the Amount of $468,560.37, Dated August 6, 2012; 

Vouchers #28155-28156, in the Amount of $13,087.33, Dated August 15, 2012; 
Vouchers #28157-28207, in the Amount of $430,720.69, Dated August 20, 2012; 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000681564-1000681580 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000681587-1000681588  Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$151,149.45, Dated August 17, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000708601-
1000708616 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $153,308.15, 
Dated August 31, 2012. 
 

C-3. Accept Puget Sound Energy Easement on SE Wax Road. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
1.  Adopt Revised Employee Handbook Resolution. 
 
Councilmember Scott recused himself from this agenda item and left the room. 
 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Beaufrere provided 
responses. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON; ADOPTING 
A REVISED CITY OF COVINGTON EMPLOYEE 
HANDBOOK, WHICH SUPERSEDES THE PREVIOUS 
VERSION OF THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK ISSUED 
UNDER RESOLUTION 07-12. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 12-09 adopting a revised City of Covington Employee Handbook 
superseding Resolution No. 07-12.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 

3 of 30



Unapproved Draft – September 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 25, 2012 
 

 3 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson requested the Council’s feedback on the invitation it received 
from the Southend Area Regional Housing to a joint city council meeting.  
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to request staff to provide notice of a Special 
Meeting in order for councilmembers to attend the SEARCH joint meeting on Thursday, 
October 11, at 7:00 p.m. in Black Diamond. 
 
Mr. Matheson also requested Council’s feedback on the Middle Green River Coalition’s request 
to be included on the October 9 agenda to update Council on the progress at Cedar Creek Park, 
including upcoming trail work and an invitation for a fall hike.  
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to allow Lisa Parsons from the Middle 
Green River Coalition to speak under Publication Communication at the October 9 
Council meeting. 
 
Mayor Harto requested the Council’s agreement to scheduling a review of the Northern Gateway 
activity on a future agenda.   
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to request staff to schedule a debriefing of 
the Northern Gateway activity at a future Council meeting. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon announced she would not be in attendance at the next regular meeting 
due to a scheduled vacation. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

4 of 30



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 25, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28208-28268, in the Amount of $233,781.85, Dated 
September 5, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000730693-1000730705 and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1000730707-1000730708 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $144,553.24, Dated September 14, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #28208-28268, in the Amount 
of $233,781.85, Dated September 5, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000730693-1000730705 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000730707-
1000730708 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$144,553.24, Dated September 14, 2012.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

5 of 30



6 of 30



7 of 30



8 of 30



9 of 30



10 of 30



11 of 30



12 of 30



13 of 30



14 of 30



15 of 30



16 of 30



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 25, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DEBRIEF NORTHERN NOTCH ADVOCACY EFFORT 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Advocacy packet used in discussions with King County officials and Suburban Cities 
Association (SCA) representatives: 

a. Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner and Councilmember Wayne Snoey’s letter 
(customized for each official) 

b. Mayor’s letter to King County Council mailed August 15, 2012 
c. Northern Gateway map 
d. City zoning map 
e. H&C Enterprises letter to city manager dated September 6, 2012 

2. Draft thank-you letter 
 
PREPARED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City Council voted 6-1 on August 14, 2012, to transmit the city’s Northern Gateway study to 
King County as well as initiate an advocacy effort to add the Northern Notch to the county’s 
Urban Growth Area (UGA).i

 

  The council then appointed Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner and 
Councilmember Wayne Snoey to represent the city in the effort. 

Over the course of the following month, the council’s representatives, mayor, city manager, 
and/or community development director communicated with every member of the King County 
Growth Management Planning Council (GMPC) appointed by the county or Suburban Cities 
Association.  The City Council’s representatives and senior planner then attended the GMPC 
meeting on September 11, 2012, as well as a King County Council meeting the following day.  
After the GMPC decided not to include the Notch in its recommended UGA changes, the City 
Council’s representatives decided to suspend advocacy efforts and schedule a debriefing session 
on September 25, 2012. 
 
The City Council’s representatives, mayor, and city manager met on September 11, 2012, to 
discuss a possible future strategy.  The group believes a solid approach would be to 1) wait until 
the 2012 King County Comprehensive Plan Update process is complete, 2) engage the Suburban 
Cities Association on the policy issues surrounding UGA expansion and allocation of population 
and employment targets to cities,ii

 

 and 3) build a coalition of cities with similar UGA issues that 
would pursue a common strategy for the next King County Comprehensive Plan update in 
(tentatively) 2016.  The city then would develop a Covington-specific advocacy work plan and 
timeline consistent with the SCA and coalition discussions. 

17 of 30



ALTERNATIVES:  Discussion item only. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Council and staff time. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion         Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Community Development Director; Finance Director; City Attorney 
 
                                                 
i The Northern Notch is a component of the larger Northern Gateway area. 
ii Population and employment targets were the only criterion for UGA expansion the Notch was unable to meet. 

18 of 30



ATTACHMENT 1a

19 of 30



20 of 30



ATTACHMENT 1b

21 of 30



4. The presence of urban services; 
5. The absence of resource lands: and 
6. The adequate protection of critical areas. 

 
Overall, the study indicates that Covington meets five of the six criteria for expanding the UGA 
to include the Notch.  The city would like to stipulate from the outset that we recognize the 
Notch fails to meet criterion 3, and that the results of the study indicate that the existing land 
supply and capacity within the city limits and our current UGA can meet the 2007 allocated 
housing and job growth targets.  However, if the Notch were added to the Covington UGA, it 
would represent only a fraction of the city’s entire UGA (10%).   
 
It has become evident through the course of this study that there are a few unintended 
consequences placed upon the city as a result of the outdated 2031growth targets given to the 
city under the 2007 BLR, and numerous mitigating factors suggest those targets may have been 
allocated below the trends that were occurring in southeast King County at that time.  Those 
targets are no longer appropriate given the economic growth seen in our city over the past five 
years.  Since 2007, the demand for regional commercial and office services, along with 
additional health care jobs, has substantially increased in the area. The city has already exceeded 
its relatively small job targets by 200% in the first six years of the 25-year planning period, in 
spite of the worst economic slowdown since the Great Depression.  In 2008-2009, the city 
completed its new economic development element in its Comprehensive Plan, which outlines the 
city’s economic profile.  It was determined at that time that the employment growth already 
exceeded targets set for 2022, and that the city has begun to position itself to be a medical 
service provider and regional retail service center for southeast King County.  As it pertains to 
residential growth, the city has met nearly half of its allocated residential growth targets (48%), 
and the city continues to see a high demand for residential growth.    
 
The pace of permitted residential developments and high job creation numbers, together with our 
market study, clearly show a demand for more growth in Covington.  Further, Covington is the 
fastest growing city in terms of retail trade in the state.  Retail services in Covington focus on a 
much larger market within rural King County beyond just Covington residents.  If the growth 
targets had been allocated more in-line with the growth and market demands we have seen the 
past six years, Covington would need more land capacity within existing city limits to meet the 
market demand.  While one may argue that there is sufficient land within the city boundary to 
accommodate the additional growth, the reality is that the city’s existing vision for our 
downtown and zoning patterns do not accommodate the market demand for a large regional retail 
center.  Most of our available properties are very small in size and not concentrated together in 
large sites. In short, the BLR and criteria fail to recognize land suitability versus actual retail 
needs.   
  
Much of our downtown commercial land lends itself to more infill development with small 
commercial and office buildings and is intended to provide a sense of place to the Covington 
community. The available vacant or re-developable properties in the downtown are not 
conducive to locate a future retail center, and the city is responding to the needs and desires of 
our residents to shop locally and create a reduced carbon footprint by not driving many miles for 
regional retail services.    
   

22 of 30



23 of 30



SE 256TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 261ST ST

SE 262ND PL

19
1S

T P
L S

E

20
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 244TH ST

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 244TH PL

FRONTAGE RD

SE 262ND ST

SE 246TH ST

17
7T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 259TH ST

SE 260TH ST

18
5T

H P
L S

E

186TH PL SE

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE18

3R
D 

AV
E S

E

17
5T

H 
WA

Y 
SE

SE 247TH ST

19
9T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 257TH ST

17
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 260TH PL

SE
 18

4T
H 

PL

SE 259TH PL

18
3R

D 
PL

 S
E

19
5T

H P
L S

E

19
2N

D 
PL

 SE

18
4T

H P
L S

E

SE 26
3R

D PL

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
SE

19
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

17
8T

H 
PL

 SE

175
TH PL SE

18
1S

T P
L S

E

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

19
7T

H 
AV

E S
E

185TH LOOP SE

19
6T

H 
PL

 SE

SE 245TH PL

SE 246TH PL

SE 247TH PL

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE 241ST PL

SE 261ST CT

20
2N

D A
VE

 SE

SE 261ST PL

19
3R

D 
AV

E S
E

SE 243RD ST

19
0T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 263RD CT

183RD CT SE

18
7T

H P
L S

E

SE 258TH PL

SE 242ND ST

SE 241ST ST

20
1S

T C
T S

E

18
0T

H 
PL

 SE

187
TH CT SE

SE 244TH LN

SE 245TH CT

20
1S

T P
L S

E

SE 264TH ST

SE WAX RD

SE 260TH PL

19
0T

H 
PL

 SE17
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 260TH PL

201ST AVE SE

18
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE 258TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 263RD ST SE 264TH ST

SE 260TH ST

SE 262ND ST
188TH AVE SE

SR 18

18
4T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 259TH PL

SE 259TH ST

SE 257TH ST

SE 259TH PL

SE 263RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

18
9T

H 
AV

E S
E

SE 258TH STSE 258TH ST

SE 259TH PL
SE 260TH ST

20
6T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
6T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 261ST PL

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 261ST ST

17
5T

H 
AV

E S
E

19
3R

D 
PL

 SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 244TH PL

SE 243RD ST

18
5T

H 
PL

 SE

18
3R

D A
VE

 S
E

SE 260TH PL

19
2N

D 
PL

 S
E

20
3R

D A
VE

 SE

18
9T

H 
PL

 S
E

17
4T

H A
VE

 SE

SE 260TH CT

198TH PL SE

SE 263RD ST

SE 263RD PL

174TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE

SE 261ST CT

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

18
0T

H 
AV

E S
E

Jenkins Creek

Little Soos Creek

.
1 inch = 700 feet

Northern Gateway Study Area

Created By: Shawn Buck 05/01/2012

Streams/Creeks

Surface Water

City Limits

Sub-Area Plan Study Boundary

ATTACHMENT 1c

24 of 30



Lake Meridian

Pipe Lake

US(R-1)

NC R-8
CC

R-8
R-6

NC

R-4

M

R-8

R-6

R-4

R-4

US(R-1)

I

US(R-1)

GC TC

MHO

MHOMC

R18

SE 272ND ST

SR 18

SE 260TH ST

SE 256TH ST

15
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

16
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 240TH ST SE 240TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE WAX RD

SE 272ND ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

MHO

16
5th P

l S
E

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

19
6T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 268TH ST

SE 240TH ST

18
8 T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 262ND ST

SE 260TH PL

SE WAX RD

SE 272ND ST

SE 256TH 

ST

SE 262ND PL

17
5TH 

PL SE

SE 266TH ST

SE 254TH PL

SE 269TH ST

16
0T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 271ST ST

SE 244TH ST

1 8
3R

D 
A V

E 
S

E

SE 254TH ST

SE 262ND ST

TIM
BERLA

NE 
DR 

SE

16
8TH 

P
L 

S
E

1 9
1 S

T 
P

L 
S

E

SE 267TH PL

SE 264TH PL

SE 260TH ST

SE 264TH PL

21
2T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 259TH ST

SE 268TH ST

SE 251ST ST

1 6
4T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 264TH ST

SE 257TH ST

156TH 
P

L 
SE

17
0T

H 
P

L 
S

E

175TH 
W

A
Y 

S E
SE 270T H PL

SE 262ND PL

SE 270TH ST

20
4 T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND PL

SE 246TH ST

SE 266TH PL

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 267TH ST

SE 260TH ST

17
2N

D 
P

L 
S

E

17
8T

H 
PL 

S
E

SE 259TH PL

20
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

188TH 
AVE SE

SE 260TH PL

SE 2

58TH ST

18
0T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 263RD S T

19
5T

H 
PL 

SE

17
1S

T 
P

L 
S

E

200 TH 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 261ST ST

SE 
265T

H 
ST

SE 247TH ST

SE 263RD PL

TIMBERLANE WAY 
SE

SE 257TH ST

SE 258TH ST

SE 254TH PL

SE 
267TH ST

SE 277TH PL

SE 26

5T
H ST

SE 249TH PL

192N D 

P
L 

S
E

SE 261ST ST

16
7T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 262ND ST

SE 253RD PL

SE 279TH PL

SE 264TH ST

SE 265TH ST

SE 264TH ST

161S
T 

AVE SE

16
8T

H 
P

L 
S

E

SE 252ND PL

SE 262ND ST

19
3R

D 
P

L 
SE

SE 265TH ST

SE 269TH 

ST

18
4T

H 
P

L S
E

16
7T

H 
P

L 
S

E

19
4T

H 
AVE 

S
E

1 7
2N

D 
AV

E 
S

E

1 6
9T

H 
P

L 
S

E

SE 269TH ST

SE 262ND ST

SE 
W

AX 
RD

16
6T

H 
PL 

S
E

SE 263RD PL

SE 244TH PL

18
4T

H 
P

L 
S

E

18
1S

T 
P L 

SE

SE 256TH PL

SE 262ND PL

SE 
258TH ST

SE 264TH ST

18
5 T

H 
AV

E 
S E

20
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

18
6T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 267TH P L

SE 259TH ST

SE 268TH ST

21
1T

H 
AV

E 
SE

SE 266TH ST

20
3R

D 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 266TH ST

19
3R

D 
P

L 
S

E

1 7
3R

D 
AV

E 
SE

SE 264TH ST

SE 26 7TH PL

15
3R

D 
AV

E 
S

E

17
6 T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

18
3R

D 
AV

E 
S

E

SE 260TH ST

SE 259TH ST

SE 2 68TH 
ST

15
2N

D 
AV

E 
S

E

19
9T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

CO
VIN

G
TO

N 
W

AY 
S

E

17
2N

D 
AV

E 
S

E

186TH 
PL 

SE

16
1S

T 
PL 

S
E

19
7T

H 
PL 

SE

201ST AVE SE

1 7
5T

H 
AV

E 
SE

15
6T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

1
77

TH 
P

L 
S

E

189TH 
AV

E 
SE

1 8
4T

H 
A V

E 
S

E

20
0T

H 
A V

E 
SE

199TH 
P

L 
S E

SE 270TH PL

20
1S

T AVE 
SE

170TH 

WAY SE

18
8T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
6 T

H 
PL 

SE
1 76

TH 
P

L 
SE

15
0 T

H 
P

L 
SE

17
1S

T 
AV

E 
S

E

19
2N

D 
AV

E 
S

E

18
4T

H 
AV

E 
SE

17
9T

H 
P

L 
SE

18
5T

H 
PL 

SE

15
1S

T 
P

L 
S

E

16
5T

H 
P

L 
S E

SE 
26

3R
D PL

1 8
3R

D 
PL 

S
E

159 TH 
A V

E 
SE

17
0T

H 
AV

E 
S

E

City of Covington - Zoning Map

0 2,0001,000

Feet TC:\projects\kcgis\client_services\Covington\09032

1:30,000November 2010

ZONING

The information included on this map has been compiled by
Covington staff from a variety of sources and is subject to
change without notice.
Covington makes no representations or warranties, express
or implied, as to accuracy, completeness, timeliness, or
rights to the use of such information. This document is not
intended for use as a survey product. Covington shall not be
liable for any general, special, indirect, incidental, or consequential
damages including, but not limited to, lost revenues or lost profits
resulting from the use or misuse of the information contained on this map.
Any sale of this map or information on this map is prohibited except by
written permission of Covington.

Low Density Residential 4du/ac (R-4)

Medium Density Residential 6du/ac (R-6)

High Density Residential 8du/ac (R-8)

Multifamily Residential 18du/ac (R18)

Neighborhood Commercial (NC)

Community Commercial (CC)

Industrial (I)

Mineral (M)

General Commercial (GC)

Mixed Commercial (MC)

Town Center (TC)

City of Covington Boundary

Downtown Boundary

Parcels

Mixed Housing/Office (MHO)

Urban Separator (US) 1du/ac (R-1)

ATTACHMENT 1d

25 of 30



ATTACHMENT 1e

26 of 30



27 of 30



 

 
 [date] 
 
 
 
Honorable King County Executive Dow Constantine 
King County Chinook Building 
401 5th Ave. Suite 800  
Seattle, WA 98104 
 
Honorable King County Councilmembers 
516 Third Ave., Rm. 1200 
Seattle, WA 98104 
 
Honorable Growth Management Planning Council Members c/o Paul Reitenbach 
King County Department of Development and Environmental Services 
900 Oakesdale Ave. SW 
Renton, WA 98057 
 
RE:  City of Covington Request to add the Jenkins Creek Notch to the UGA 
 
Dear Executive Constantine, County Councilmembers, and GMPC members: 
 
On behalf of the Covington City Council, thank you for considering City of Covington's request to 
add the Jenkins Creek Notch to the Urban Growth Area (UGA) during the 2012 King County 
Comprehensive Plan update. 
 
This was the first year the city assumed a leadership role in this fascinating issue.  We learned it 
takes more than several months and a thorough study to change the UGA boundary; it takes several 
years and strong partnerships among the county, cities, and property owners.   
 
We believe that a regional conversation about the UGA boundary and its various irregularities – 
prior to the next comprehensive-plan update process and focused on policy issues rather than 
specific proposals – has the potential to produce a more collaborative and streamlined approach to 
the next update.  We hope to explore this concept with the Suburban Cities Association in the near 
future. 
 
Again, thank you again for the time and effort you and your staff invested in our request.  We look 
forward to working with you further on this issue. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
 
Margaret Harto 
Mayor 
 
cc:  Deanna Dawson, Executive Director, Suburban Cities Association 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

28 of 30



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date: September 25, 2012  

 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

October 9, 2012 – City Council Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29 of 30



Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 235-
480-2400.  
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, October 9, 2012                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Cedar Park Update – Lisa Parsons, Middle Green River Coalition (10 minutes) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  September 25, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Recommendations for 2013-2014 Human Services Grant Funding (Throm) 
2. City Manager’s 2013 Budget Message (Matheson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

Draft 
as of 09/19/12 

 

30 of 30

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	09-25-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, September 25, 2012                                                                    City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 09-25-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachments 09.11.2012 Reg CC
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 09-25-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-2 Attachments
	Agenda Item 1 Blue Sheet 09-25-12 Debrief Northern Notch
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1a Snoey-Wagner ltr to GMPC
	Item 1 Attachment 1b Mayors ltr to KC Council
	Item 1 Attachment 1c Northern Gateway Study_Area_Map_05012012_reduced size
	Item 1 Attachment 1d ZONING_Nov_2010
	Item 1 Attachment 1e H&C Memorandum of Intent 9-6-2012
	Item 1 Attachment 2 Draft thank-you letter
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	10-09-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, October 9, 2012                                                                           City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




